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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee}

GOVERNORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

GOVERNCORS' REPORT

The Governors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of The Piggott Church
of England Schocl {'the Academy' or 'the charitable company’) for the period 31 August 2023. The annual report
serves the purposes of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
trustees of The Piggott Church of England School are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as The Piggott Church of England School.

The Academy, which was incorporated on 24 June 2011 and opened as an Academy on 01 July 2011, is a
company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association are the primary governing documents of the Academy.

The Governors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of the Academy and are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the Governors who served throughout the period, except as noted, are included in the Reference and
Administrative Details on page 1.

The Piggott Church of England School is an academy for pupils aged 4 to 19 serving a catchment area in

Wargrave, Twyford, Charvil, and surrounding villages. it has a pupil capacity of 1548 and had a roll of 1869 in
the school census on 5th October 2023 {1828, 6th October 2022},

Members’ Liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it

being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as
may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Governors’ Indemnities

The Governors benefit from indemnity insurance purchased by the Academy fo cover the liability of the
Governors arising from negligent acts, errors or commissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The limit
of this indemnity is £10,000,000.

Principal Acfivities

The principal activity of the Academy is to advance for the public benefit education by establishing, maintaining,
carrying on, managing and developing a broad and balanced curriculum.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Governors

On 01 July 2011 the Trustees appointed all those Governors that served the predecessor school to be
Governors of the newly formed Academy, These Governors were appointed on a term of office that would end
when their original term at the predecessor school would have ended, thus ensuring a staggered re-election or
replacement process.

The Academy shall have the following Governors as set out in its Aricles of Association and Funding
Agreement:

s upto 11 Foundation Governcrs who are appointed by the Members;

+ upto 4 Parent Governors who are elected by the parents of registered pupils at the Academy;

¢ up to 3 Staff Governors who are elected by the staff of the Academy (provided that the total number of
Governors, including the Headteacher, who are employees of the Academy, does not exceed one third of
the total number of Governors);

+ upto 2 co-opted governors appointed by the Foundation Governors and the Diocesan Board of Education;

« upto 1 Community Governor who is appointed by the Members; and

« the Headteacher who is treated for all purposes as being an ex-officio Governor.

Governors are appointed for a 4-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Headteacher,
Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Governors, any Governors can be re-appointed or re-
elected.

When appointing new Governors, the Governing Body gives consideration to the skills and experience mix of
existing Governors in order to ensure the Governing Body has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the
Academy's development.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Governors

The training and induction provided for new Governors will depend upon their existing experience but would
include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet staff and pupils. All Governors are provided with copies of
policies, proceduras, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents they will need to undertake their
role as Governors. As there are normally only two or three new Governors a year, induction tends to be done
ad hoc and is tailored specifically to the individual. Advantage is taken of specific courses offered by various
other organisations as appropriate. All new governors are offered induction training by Wokingham Borough
Council.

Governor training and advice is accessed through Governors’ Support Services, National Governors
Association, Wokingham Borough Council, and through the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education. New
Governors have the opportunity to undertake National Governor Association fraining and all Governors receive
regular National Governor Association updates.

Organisational Structure

The Governing Body meets at feast six times a year. It establishes an overall framework for the governance of
the Academy and agrees the structure of the Governing Body and appoints Committees/Lead Governors. it
receives policy documents, from the various lead governors/Committees, for ratification, and monitors the
activities of the Lead Governors/Committees through the minutes of their meetings, It alzo agrees the Terms of
Reference and Procedures for the Committees/Lead Governors. The Governing Body will, when necessary,
appoint Governors to Statutory and other panels, and may also, from time to time, establish Working Groups to
perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

During the year, the Governing Body was made up of Committees/Lead Governors who had direct responsibility
for different aspects of school life as follows:

« Finance:
To deal with all matters refating to finance

« Standards, Achievement, Learning and Teaching (SALT):

To have oversight and recommend to Full Governing Body challenging achievement targets and monitor use of
Pupil Premium. To monitor funding, learning needs/provision, curriculum, outcomes, targets and standards for
disadvantaged and other subgroups of pupils. Further to review all matters relating to the curricufum,

« Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural (SMSC):

To deal with the ethos of a Church School, collective worship and Diocesan links

+ Admissions:
To deal with all matters relating to admissions, including in-year admissions and appeals and Sixth Form

admissions

« SEN/Equalities: (SEN role subsumed into the SALT Committee in April 2023)
To ensure equality of opportunity for all students regardless of ability, aptitude, physical access and background

s Leadership and Management:
To monitor and, where necessary and/or appropriate, challenge the Schoal's development priorities and its self-

evaluation of progress towards these priorities undertaken by the senior leaders

» Safeguarding:
To have oversight of all safeguarding procedures (staff and student) in school

» Facilities:
To limise with the Premises Manager to ensure compliance with Health and Safety and to have oversight of
major facilities development.

o Primary
To monitor, and have oversight of, all matters relating to the curriculum, disadvantaged pupils, pupils with
SEND, more and most able and looked after children at the Primary site and ensure equality of opportunity.

» Disciplinary:
To hear pupil and/or staff disciplinary matters if they arise

¢ Careers:
To oversee the strategy for careers education and guidance and to ensure the school is meeting its legal
requirements.

+ Looked after children
Ta ensure equality of opportunity and to monitor attainment and progress of this group of pupils

s Pay
To review and approve all matters relating to the pay of the Academy's members of staff,

» Executive Headteacher appraisal:

To carry out an annual appraisal of the Executive Headteacher and to make recommendations to the Pay
Committee.

Each Committee has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibilities discharged to it
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The following decisions are reserved to the full Governing Body:

« to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constifution of the Academy and s committee
structure;

» to appoint or remove the Chair and / or Vice Chair; and

+ to appoint the Headteacher

s to appoint the Company Secretary.

The Governors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual development plan and budget,
approving the annual statutory accounts, monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and other data, and
making the major decisions about the direction of the Academy, capital expenditure and staff appointments.

The Governors have devolved the day-to-day management of the Academy to the Headteacher and the Senior
Leadership Team ('SLT'). The SLT comprises our Executive Headteacher, Deputy Headteachers and Assistant
Headteachers and School Business Manager at our Wargrave site and Executive Headteacher, Headteacher,
Deputy Headteacher at our primary site. The SLT implement the policies laid down by the Governors and report
back to them on performance.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy is reviewed annually, including reference to
comparisons with other schools to ensure that The Piggott Church of England School remains sensitive to the
broader issues of pay and employment conditions focally and nationally.

Trade union facility time

The school currently contracts through Wokingham Borough Council for union facilities time to access
representative who work across schoois and who are training and experienced union officials. The cost in 2023
was £850.

Relevant union officials

Number of amgloyess who were refevant umen officiele Cunng the | Fui-time  aguivalent  empioyee

ralevant penod umear

3 30

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of the
Academy. There are no sponsors or formal Parent Teacher Assaciations associated with the Academy which
either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of the Academy.

The Piggott Church of England School is committed to working with other organisations which contribute to the
improvement in provision for students and ensure that their achievement and well-being is maximised.

The School is part of a successful and vibrant learning community which includes the main feeder primary
schaols in the North Wokingham Cluster. We work in partnership to provide effective transition arrangements,
and a wide variety of curriculum and extra-curricular activities.

The aspiration of the schocl is to provide a currictdum suited to meet the needs of all students within the
resources available. This is achieved by working with other schoois within the Wokingham Federation of
Secondary Schools, Berkshire College of Agriculture (BCA) and Brackneil and Wokingham College to provide a
breadth of curriculum, including vocational opportunities.

This is very much supported by the school's outstanding careers and guidance provision supported by local
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

business partners. The school works closely with the LA and contributes to the Headteachers' associations, the
Local Safeguarding Children's Board, WBC Schools' Forum, and WBC SACRE.

Through the Wokingham Federation, we are the lead school within the Schools Direct programme which is itseif
part of the Wellington College Teaching School Partnership.

As well as a strong local network of connected organisations the school has active links with national and
international partners including schools in Germany, France, Spain and China.

The Academy Trust's association with all these networks is to further promote the opportunities and
achievements of our students and to enable our staff to share good practice and so raise the standard of

teaching and tearning,
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and Aims

The principal objects of the Academy, as set out in its Articles of Association, are to!

» advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in paricular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school,
offering a broad and balanced curricuium; and

» promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Wargrave, Twyford, Charvil and the surrounding area the
provision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such
facilities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity, disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances for the public at large in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving the
condition of life of the said inhabitants.

« The principal aim of the Academy Trust is to provide high quality learning that helps all students to fulfil their
intellectual potential and become good and emotionally well-balanced young peopie.

» The Academy Trust aims to be one of the best schools in the country. 'Our ambition is to develop all
students academically, socially and emotionally in a happy, organised and disciplined environment so that
they can make full use of their opportunities in life. Qur vision for the school is that it is a place........ which
inspires and encourages the highest achievement.'

QOur Christian Vision is taken from the parable of Good Samaritan, “Go and do likewise”. Luke 10:25
The aims of the Academy during the period ended 31 August 2023 are summarised below:

+ Provide a caring environment based on Christian values.

» Develop enquiring minds capable of independent thought.

« Promote the value of lifelong learning.

s+ Be opento new ideas.

+« Encourage respect and tolerance.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

The key priorities for the period are contained in the Academy's Development Plan which is available from the
Headteacher.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The main activities and achievements of the Academy for the pericd ended 31 August 2023 are listed below in
detail.

Public Benefit

The Governors confirm that they have complied with the requirement in the Charities Act 2011 to have due
regard to the Charity Commission general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties. They
have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy'’s aims and objectives and in planning its future
activities,

The Academy aims to advance for the public benefit education in the Wargrave, Twyford, Charvil and the
surrounding area, offering a broad curriculum,

The Academy also allows use of its facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupation for the
community at large in the interests of social welfare and with the interest of improving the life of that community.

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Academy has continued to work on the priorities set out in the SIPs approved by the Governing Body on 4
October 2022.

The School faces a number of principal risks as set out in the 'Principal Risks and Uncertainties' section

The School uses various financial instruments including cash and items such as trade debtors and trade
creditors that arise directly from its operations.

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the school to a number of financial risks which are
described in more detail below.

The main risks arising from the financial statements are cash flow, interest rate risk and credit risk. The schooi
seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient jiquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to
invest cash assets safely and profitably. The school seeks to manage its cash reserves to ensure liabilities are
settled as they fall due,

Page 8



THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Achievements and Performance

The total number of pupils in the period ended 31 August 2022 was 1756, but this has increased to 1869 at the
October 2023 census date due to the continued demand for places at the Academy.

The Academy is committed to continual improvement which is achieved in a number of ways, including
improvement planning, review meetings, continual professional development, lesson observations, performance
management, seif-evaiuation, data analysis and action planning.

The particular achievemenis and performance of the Acadermy during the period ended 31 August 2023 were as
follows:

A Levels 2023

261 students entered A Level and Level 3 qualifications and achieved the following outcomes:

AT A 2023 =34% 2022 = 47% 2021 = 43% 2020 = 48% 2019 = 30%
A -8 2023 =53% 2022 = 74% 2021 = 558% 2020 =79% 2019 = 4%
A C 2023 = 53% 2022 =91% 2021 =90% 2020 = 95% 2019 =87%

Overall A*-E: 98.7%
Average Points Score per entry: 2023 =38.63 2022=42.7 2021=412 2020=43.8 2019=38.4
These excellent results were a rich reward for both staff and students, for their tireless and enthusiastic

endeavours during the previous two years. Many students suipassed expectations and many achieved the
grades needed for university entrance; with many of our students gaining places at 'Russell Group' universities.

A Level Treads 2018 | 2020 | 2821 | 2022 2623
MNumber of students 142 144 182 213 261

% of grades A - A 3 48 43 47 34

% of grades A" - B 54 79 55 74 53

% of grades A* - C 86 95 S0 G1 83
Average poind score per entry 384 43.8 412 42.7 39.05
ALPs Quality Indicator 3 2 2 2
ALPs T score 3 1 2 2

ALPs 3-year 7 score 2 3 3 2
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOQO1.
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

GCSEs 2023

Our Year 11 students achieved excellent results in the summer. In summary:
201 students were entered

» 91% of these students achieved at least a Grade 4 in maths and 92% achieved this in English Literature
and/or Language

* 89% gained at least a grade 4 pass in both English Literature and/or Language and mathematics

» 69% of these students achieved at least a Grade 5 in maths and English Literature and/or Language

o 87% of students obtained at least 5A*-C grades including English 4+ and Mathematics 4+

« Our Progress 8 score is currently estimated to be between +0.66 - +0.80

These results reflect the hard work, determination and commitment of our staff, students and their parents. We
are delighted that the majority of these students returned to continue their education in our Sixth Form.

Rasuits Fasulis Resuls Resutis Rasuls
201920 202021 202122 2022723
Percentage 547 G incitding Enchish |88% 85% G0 Bi%
4+ and Malhs 4=
% (ood Pass i4~] In Engisn {Liter [28% 873 §2% 8%%
Lang) ang 1ialhs
Fercentage 9-4 Ergish &% s0% 92% 8%
Language GCSE
Percentage 9-4 Mathentatics GOSE  182% 15 S1% 21%,
PRCGRESS § +1.14 +1.C3 +0.85 =078
AZhainment 8 6.18 £.18 5.3 589
Ebace % Entry 55% S2% $6.8% 42%
Ebast 35 pass M+ 40% 48% 45.1% 28%
2 ~ Spience GCSES 4+ 2019723 2020723 202122 202223
80% 0% §2% 88%
Primary

At EYFS, 76% of pupils achieved a Good Level of Development. At Key Stage 1, Reading was 67% ARE+,
Writing 63% ARE+ and Maths 83% ARE+, 26% achieved Greater Depth in Reading and 16% in Maths.

At Key Stage 2, the outcomes were Reading with 68% at ARE+ and 20% at GDS; Grammar Punctuation and
Spelling with 80% at ARE+ and 39% at GDS; and Maths with 60% at ARE+ and 17% at GDS. In writing, 85% of

pupils achieved ARE+ and 17% GDS.
TEACHING AND LEARNING

A broad range of questioning strategies is used to encourage studenis to develop ideas and deepen
understanding. Clear, regular, recorded feedback that explains how well students are doing and how to improve
work is provided, with follow up feedback to ensure students are using it to improve their work
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

BEHAVIOUR AND SAFETY
Attendance;

Target of 95%

Actual attendance for the year from 1st September 2022 to July 2023 = 92.9% (6% Authorised Absences, 1%
Unauthorised Absences).

Exclusions:

Target of very fow % exclusions compared to the national average
Actual exclusions up to July 2022: Permanent: 0 Fixed Term: 14

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS
Primary School Development

In September 2013, the Primary School opened to 23 Reception pupils and the building of the school was fully
completed in February 2014. There are now 210 children on roll.

A summer house has been erected as additional space for pupils who receive certain interventions and support.
Anather interactive whiteboard has been installed to replace an older model, improving the learning experience
for this class. A new reception storage shed was erected and Year 1 now benefit from outside lockers. A
sensory room has also been created.

Sporting achievements :
The primary school belongs to the ‘Wokingham School Games' consortium.

This involves multiple mini sporting events across the year, aiming to promote physical activity and weltbeing for
all.

The events are interschool and hosted at different venues across the borough.
Multi skills festivais

Tennis tournaments

K82 Netball cornpetitions

New age Kurling

Cross Country events

Tag Rugby Megafest

Cricket tournament

Multiple football tournaments

All pupiis in Year 3 — to Year 6 completed six swimming sessions in a local swimming pool in the summer
term 2023

" & & & 8 & & & 0w

Week beginning 18" June 2023 : Sports Week

The primary school hosted a full week of activities to promote health, physical activity and wellbeing.
A bespoke timetable for the week that focused on the Youth Sport Trust vision of © play for fun, play for 60°

»  Skills based sessions : communication, love, nutrition, sporting success and learning from mistakes.
Inclusion and diversity through sport literature ; women in sport, disability in sport, racial prejudice in sport
Outside speakers from the world of sport completed assemblies — "What's your story’

Visiting specialist sport providers : Tennis, Rugby, Cricket, Dance, Basketball.

A whole schoo! sports day — field and track with visiting Year 9 peer sports |leaders leading events
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Primary Trips :

Henley Literary Festival — author presentation and love of reading — all pupils attended
Year 4 — Hampton Court Palace

Year 5 - Earth Trust visit

Foundation — Rushall Farm

Year 6 — Residential outdoor activity trip to Gloucester

*a = @ » »

Secondary Schoot Site Development
Repairs, replacement and renovations ook place to various areas of the school site during 2022/23.

The new four-classroom RE block was built and opened for usage. The main toilets in the playground were
renovated and a new toilet block made accessible o students. The Student Services Hub was renovated and a
new meeting room created and the KS3 Hub was expanded and renovated. The main playground was patch
repaired and the path on the Twyford field was resurfaced. The 3G floodlights were replaced and EV charging
stations instafled on both sites. Two MFL classrooms were renovated over the 2023 Summer holidays.

Students

Secondary

£5,776 was raised for charities this year — charities included Readifood Reading, the Turkish earthquake
appeal, McMillan and Children in Need.

Primary

The primary school supported a number of charities last year, including Children in Need, Save the Children
and Comic Relief and raised a total of £788.

Secondary

Approximately 50 off-site visits were offered to Wargrave students during the academic year 2022.23. These
comprised a mixture of residential, language exchanges, course and careers related trips. We organise
exchanges with partner schools in Madrid (Spain), Fougéres (France) every year. Our German Exchange to
Erftstadt runs every two years.

Year 7 had a 1-night camping residential. 217 students participated

Year 8 had a 3-night residential PGL trip in the Paris. 170 students participated

Year 9 visited Holland for a 3-night residential PGL trip. 124 students participated

Year 10 students undertook a 4-night sail with the Tall Ships Youth Trust

Year 11 English Literature students saw An Inspector Calls at The Richmond Theatre. 50 students

participated

7 Year 12 students from the Piggott School Debate Club joined a local interschool debate

+« The Piggott School Design and Technology students reached the prestigious final of the Design Ventura
competition (D&T). The Piggott School School entry was shortlisted in the top 10 designs.

+ 66 students in Year 9 studying Art and Design at GCSE visited Kew Gardens fo take photographs and
undertake research to enhance their coursework portfolios.

« Sixth form students participated in taster days at one of 4 different universities (Heﬁfordshare Birmingham,
Bath and Reading} to gain an insight into university life.

« Other day trips offered on Activities Days included visits to Wicked at London's Apollo Theatre for Year 7,

Marwelt Zoo for Year 9 (both in the Autumn term). The summer Activities Days involved adventures at Hi5

for Year 10 as well as external presentations from the Police, Sports Coaches, Solomon Theatre Groups

and Positively You. Year 8 students participate in a Business/Media Taster Day, whereas Year 10 and 12

receive Careers Advice from external speakers. Years 12 and 13 receive support with UCAS preparation,

personal statements and advice from guest speakers from a local University.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Geography Department took a total of 96 students from Years 8, 9 and 10 to Sky Studios to participate
in a Sky Academy experience where students created their own newsreel. Geography field frips were also
undertaken by Year 10 (locally at Rushalf Farm), and by Year 13 (2-night residential in Slapton Ley, Devon).
A Level PE students visited GoPerform and Go Ape, to support their studies.

The Chemistry Department took 22 students on a 2-night residential trip to CERN (European Council for
Nuclear Research) in Geneva.

25 Year 10 students performed carols at Bridge House, a local nursing home. Music students participated
in a one-day jazz workshop in school. This involved masterclasses run by a professional jazz performer
and trumpet player, Matt Holland.

A small group of 12 students from Year 8 attended an Outdoor Education Day at Wellington College
involving high rope and fow rope activities.

We had a large number of students participating in our Duke of Edinburgh Awards this year.

122 students successfully completed the Duke of Edinburgh Bronze Award with an additional 9 completing
the Certificate only. 70 students successfully completed the Duke of Edinburgh Silver Award with 7
completing the Certificate only.

Year 11 enjoyed their traditional Celebration Prom to mark the end of their GCSE years

SPORTING ACHIEVEMENTS

Primary 2022-23

A year 5 pupil represented the school at the British Primary Schools International Table Tennis

Secondary 2022-23

Some of our outstanding sporting successes during 2022 23 include:

Rughby:
U16 Boys — Champions of the Reading Schools Rugby Union League

Senior Boys — Runners up in the County Cup

Football:

U13 Girls - EBSFA League and County Cup Champions, Round 3 of ESFA National Cup &
Represented Berkshire in the Utilita Cup in Walsall - 2nd place overall

U14 Girls — County Cup Champions & Last 16 of ESFA National Cup

U15 Girls — EBSFA League & County Cup Champions & Last 16 of ESFA National Cup
U16 Girls — County Cup Champions and Last 32 of ESFA National Cup

Senior Girls — AOC National Foothall League and County Cup Champions
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Netball:

U12 Girls — Wokingham Swift League winners
U13 Girls — Wokingham Swift League winners
U14 Girls — Wokingham Swift League winners

Cross Country:

U12 Girls — Reading & District Schools Cross Country League Champions

U13 Girls — Berkshire Schools Cross Country Champions

U14 Girls — Reading & District Schools Cross Country League Champions

U12 Boys — Reading & District Schools Cross Country League Champions

U14 Boys — Reading & District Cross Country League Champions

U13 Boys — Runners Up in the Reading Schools Cricket League East

U14 Boys — Runners Up in the Reading Schools Cricket League East (lost the final by 2 runs)
U156 Boys ~ Reading Schools Cricket League East Champions

Athietics:

U185 Girls ~ Wokingham District Sports champions
U13 Boys — Wokingham District Sports champions
U15 Boys — Wokingham District Sports champions

Rounders:
U13 Girls — Wokingham Swift League champions
U14 Giris ~ Wokingham Swift League Champions

STAFF DEVELOPMENT

The Piggott Church of England School is the Lead School for the Wokingham Federation graup of schoals and
is one of the country’s largest providers for School Direct Teacher Training. Across Wokingham, 40+ teachers
were trained. In the Piggott School, during 2022 - 23, we successfully trained 22 new teachers of whom four are
now employed at the school in; Science, Computer Science, Geography and Art. Trainees came from Reading
University, Oxford University as well as the NML MFL SCITT and Teach South East last academic year. In
addition, 14 Early Career Teachers started their induction years (2 year induction as of 2021/22).

1.

Several staff contributed to the wider training provision for teachers in the Wokingham Federation of
Schools. These after school events were well attended and form an integral part of the ECT year for each
trainee. These events were held as face to face meetings, at different times throughout the year. Staff
leading the training were successfully able to lead sessions to cater for the needs of a wide range of
colleagues across the Federation Schools.

The successful twilight INSET programme has been continued, delivered by colleagues for colleagues and
has helped fo spread good practice across the school and provide effective, value for money CPD
opportunities.

There continues to be a large number of examiners in the school, including some at a very senior level; it
has been found that colleagues working for exam boards are able to share vital information at a time of
confusion from other sources. Working for an awarding body is extremely challenging but is a good
opportunity to see how well candidates are prepared for exams in other schools. Staff are awarded a
discretionary timetable allowance (2 lessons per fortnight) for their examination work.

Teaching staff have contributed to primary outreach within a variety of teaching and leadership
programmes. This builds strong relationships in the community as well as offering outstanding professional
development opportunities. Work with Charvil Piggott has become embedded into many staffs timetables.
Work with other local primary schools has continued — with a focus on RE and PE.

Good quality overall continuous professional development has been maintained on a budget reduction.
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6. There continues to be an improvement of Leadership and Management expertise. For example, all teaching
staff at Wargrave are familiar with 4matrix. ALPS Connect is now embedded across the school and is now
available to ali staff. The staff appraisal process is data led, with all staff engaging in conversations
surrounding data from both ALPS and 4matrix. Heads of department are asked to analyse their department
data using 4matrix and complete a report thereafier.

7. Colleagues have been able to attend subject specific INSET on curriculum change according to need. We
have taken advantage of new online exam board courses fo assist with this. These sessions include those
specifically designed for ECT (years 1 and 2) teachers. Twilight CPD sessions have continued to run and
are popular with may staff.

Key Performance indicators

Although the Academy’s Funding Agreement is not subject to a specific carry forward fimit on the amount of
GAG funding, the main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet date
and, in particular, the amount of GAG funding carried forward at the balance sheet date, At 31 August 2023, the
balance of the GAG Restricted Fund was £Nil, which is after a transfer of £36,019 to the Restricted Fixed Asset
Fund to fund capital expenditure during the period.

As the majority of the Academy's funding is based on pupil numbers, pupil numbers is also a key performance
indictor. As noted above, pupil numbers at the most recent census were 1,869 which is an increase of over
5.5% from the previous census.

As a resull, the ratic of GAG funding per pupil was £5,327 for the pericd.

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Academy and the percentage of total staff costs to
GAG funding for the period was 93.36%, while the percentage of staff costs to total costs was 75.53%.

Going Concern

After making appropriate engquiries, the Board of Governors, including all Committees, has a reasonable
expectation that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason it continues fo adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note
of the financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Review

The majority of the Academy's income is received from the DIE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the
use of which is restricted to paricular purposes. The grants received from the DFE during the period ended 31
August 2023 and the associated expenditure of these grants are shown as Restricted Funds in the Statement of
Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DIE and other crganisations and funders and these

are shown as Restricted Fixed Asset Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. The balance of the
Restricted Fixed Asset fund is reduced by the depreciation charges on the assets acquired using these funds.

Unrestricted Funds:
Income received into the Unrestricted Fund was £211,026. This was predominantly attributable to the hire of

sports facilities and school's catering. Expenditure against the fund was £25,028 for the year, giving an
Unrestricted Fund carry forward of £393,213.
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Restricted Fixed Asset (Capital) Fund:

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by an annual depreciation charge over the expected useful
life of the assets concerned in line with the Academy's depreciation policy. Income received into the fund
totalled £1,160,805 and included Formula Capital Funding of £1,155,914,

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Piggott Church of England School held fund balances at 31 August 2023 of £18,855,482 (2022
17,880,119) comprising a deficit of £877,000 (2022: 1,233,000) of restricted general finds (after recognition of
FRS 17 Pension deficit), £19,418,069 (2022; 18,777,692} of restricted fixed asset funds, £393,213 (2022
335,427) of unrestricted funds (the last of which represents the level of free reserves held by the school,

INVESTMENT POLICY

The academy may invest unrestricted reserves in short-term accounts (where funds are invested for one year or
less) provided by one of the main UK High Street Banks. This sum is reviewed by the School Business Manager
and the Executive Headteacher on an ongoing basis. Access to these reserves must be available at short notice
in case of emergency, albeit with a loss of any interest accrued. Multipie accounts are used to limit any loss of
interest payable in the case of emergency usage.

The 3G pitch bank account balance, as restricted reserves, can also be invested in long-term fixed accounts
with a UK High Street Bank for 1 year.

Cash at bank, at monthly lowest, has historically been at least £200K above reserve levels. This differential will
be monitored regularly. The academy may invest this differential in short-term accounts provided by one of the
main UK High Street Banks. This sum is reviewed by the School Business Manager and the Executive
Headteacher on an ongoing basis.

Any such investment over the previous year's unrestricted and restricted reserves, as noted in the annual
accounts, is advised to the Finance Committee.

The objectives of these accounts are to hold the Academy’s reserves at low risk whilst maximising interest
payable.

The fixed assets held by the Academy are used exclusively for providing education and associated support
services to the pupils of the Academy.

The balance of total funds held at 31 August 2023 were £18,955,482 which comprised of the following:

Restricted Funds (excluding Pension Liability) £Nil
Restricted Pension Liability Fund £(877,000)
Restricted Fixed Asset Fund £19,418,069
Unrestricted Funds £393,213

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included the Financial Procedures Poficies
and Manual, which lays out the framework for the Academy's financial management, including financial
responsibilities of the Governing Body, Headteacher, managers, budget holders and other staff, as well as the
delegated authorities for spending. The other financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period
included Charges and Lettings, Asset Management and Insurance,
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Reserves Policy

The Governors review the Academy’s reserves policy annually. They have determined that the appropriate level
of revenue reserves shouid continue to be a minimum of £300,000

The governors acknowledge that a sum of £300,000 now equates to less than one month's salary costs. The
Governors further acknowledge the desirability of increasing the reserves to the £410,000 required to mest one
month’s costs but accept this needs to be balanced against the current and future needs of the school. The
governors have taken info account that our main income stream from the ESFA is almost certain and the Full
Governing Body, in conjunction with the Senior Leadership Team, have plans in place to address any shortfall in
income if this occurred. The Governors envisage the reserves building up over time to a level equating to one
month'’s salary.

The Academy's current level of reserves (defined as restricted generai funds, excluding pension reserve, plus
the balance on unrestricted funds) is £383,213, of which £383,213 is free reserves (that is, total funds less the

amount held in fixed assets and restricted funds).

The current level of reserves is inline with our target level of free cash reserves.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial

The Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA. In the period,
approximately 94% of the Academy's incoming resources (excluding amounts transferred on conversion from
the Local Authority) was ultimately Govermnment funded and whilst this level is expected to continue, there is no
assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will centinue at the
same levels or on the same terms.

Failures in governance and / or management
The risk in this area arises from the potential fallure to effectively manage the Academy's finances, internal
controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns etc. The Governors continue to review
and ensure appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.

Reputational
The continuing success of the Academy is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient numbers

by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk, the Governors ensure that pupil
success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed.

Safeguarding and child protection
The Governors continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection and

monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and discipline.

Staffing
The success of the Academy is reliant on the quality of its staff so the Governors monitor and review policies

and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear
succession planning.

Fraud and rmismanagement of funds

The Academy has engaged its external auditors to perform a program of work aimed at checking and reviewing
the financial systems and records as required by the Academies Financial Handbook. Al finance staff receive
training to keep them up to date with financial practice requirements and to develop their skills in this area.

Estates
The Trustees have delegated the role of a competent person to the Premises Manager who holds a NEBOSH

qualification. Weekly building checks are done to make sure the Estate is maintained and complies with relevant
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regulations. The asbestos management survey and register are updated on a regular basis. Health and safety
and building checks are part of fortnightly management meetings and are discussed as a standing item. Annual
H&S briefing is done at the start of every academic year and employees are reminded of their duty under
legislation to take reasonable care for their own safety and the safety of others at all times and to be familiar
with the contents of the Health & Safety policy and the supporting procedures. Annual health and safety checks
are done by external parties to make sure the school complies with regulations.

The Trustees ensure regularity and propriety in the use of Trust funds and achieve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. DfE frameworks are used where possible to achieve the best value for money when considering
building projects. We have a robust lettings policy, the site is very well covered by CCTV, and automated gates
on timers and the site development plan is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure projects are prioritised where
needed. A rolling site development plan is maintained and updated.

The Academy has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the period by improving the
process and ensuring staff awareness. A Risk Register is maintained and reviewed and updated on a regular

basis.
Risk Management

The Governors have implemented a systemn to assess risks that the Academy faces, especially in the
operational areas (such as in relation to teaching, health & safety and school trips) and in relation to the control
of finances. They have introduced systems, including operationai procedures and internal financial controls in
order to minimise risk. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate
insurance cover.

The Academy has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Statement of Internal Control.

Financial and Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Academy has agreed a Risk Management Strategy, a Risk Register and a Risk Management Plan. These
have been discussed by the Governors and include the financial risks to the Academy, The Risk Register and
Risk Management Plan are constantly reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed annually.

The Governors have assessed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed, in particular those relating to
its finances, teaching, facilities and other operational areas. The Governors have implemented a number of
systems to assess and minimise those risks, including internal controls. Where significant financial risk still
remains, the Governors have ensured the Academy has adequate insurance cover.

Whilst the Academy is currently over-subscribed, risks to revenue funding from a falling roll are small. However,
changes in funding arrangements for special educational needs and the increasing employment and premises
costs mean that budgets will be increasingly tight in coming years.

The Governors examine the financial health of the Academy formally every term, reviewing performance against
budgets and overall expenditure by means of regular update reports at all full Govemnors and Finance and
Resources Commiittee meetings.

At the balance sheet date, the Academy had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors
where there would be s significant effect on the Academy’s liquidity.

The Governors recognised that the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit represents a significant potential
liability to the Academy. However, as the Governors consider the Academy is able to meet its known annual
contribution commitments for the foreseeable future, the risk from this liability is minimised.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
The Academy strives to continually improve the educational experience for all pupils, equipping them with the
gualifications, skills and character to follow their chosen pathway, whether it be into further and higher education

or employment, as well as promoting the continued professional development of its staff,
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The Academy's plans for future periods include increasing the teaching facilities on site facilities with a new
teaching block, school hall and hard court areas to meet the needs of the increased number of pupils on roll,
and cater for future demand.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

The Academy and its Governors do not act as Custodian Trustees of any other charity.

AUDITOR

In so far as the Governors are aware:

¢ there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

= the Governors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Governors' report was approved by order of the Board of Governors, as the company directors, on
VTN D.Q{‘_Qj\l\b R 7723 and signed on its behalf by:

A

Chair of Governors e
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Scope of responsibility

As Governors, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Piggott Church of England
School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Headteacher, as
Accounting Cfficer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibifities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Piggott Church of England School and the Secretary of State for Education. They are
also responsible for reporting to the Board of Governors, including all Committees, any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that information that is described in the Governors'
Report and in the Governors' Responsibilities Statement, the Governing Body has formally met 8 times during
the period ended 31 August 2023,

Attendance during the period at meetings of the Governing Body was as follows:

Governor Meetings attended Out of a possible

S Beere — Parent 6

J Bell - Parent

L Bowley - Foundation

J Cook - Foundation

M Cowieson - Community
J Cowley - Foundation

D Gray - Headteacher

G Hughes - Foundation

J Humphrey - Staff - Teacher
J May ~ Foundation

T Mhlanga — Foundation
M Newman - Parent

D Oppong - Foundation

J Perowne - Foundation

| Pogue - Parent

G Scholes - Foundation

A Silby - Co-opted

M Smith — Staff — Teacher
A Smyly - Foundation

R Thiele - Co-opted, Chair
C West - Foundation

B Zesik - Parent

OO OO~ NGB NN OG0~WWANG
N0 W®DooWoOWmmEN

The Finance Committee is a sub-Committee of the Governing Body. Its purpose is to provide guidance and
assistance to the Governing Body on all matters related to the finance and resources of the Academy. This
includes preparing and approving annual budgets, monitoring financial performance against that budget,
reviewing delegated authorities, ensuring all transactions are conducted in accordance with good practice as
directed by the ESFA, to ensure best value is achieved in all financial fransactions and fo receive and (where
relevant} respond to period audit reports on the Academy and of public funds. The Committee met formally
three times during the year. Mr James Bell has been appointed to the Committee as a non-governor but with
voting rights. Mr Bell attended 3 out of a possible 3 meetings.
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Governance (continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
D Gray 3 3
J May 2 2
J Perowne 3 3
I Pogue 3 3
R Thiele 2 3

The Governing Body regularly reviews its structure and composition and was reviewed on at least 2 occasions
during the year. On 20th April 2023 SEND was moved from a link governor role into the SALT Committee’s
remit. This structure matches Governors' skills with areas of responsibilily and allows for continuous
accountability. The governor structure and composition are kept, as a minimum, under annual review.

Review of Vaiue for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the academy delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to
the educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and management, achieved in return for
the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy's use of its resources has provided goed value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
inciuding the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

1. Reviewing staffing costs and teaching structure to become more efficient. Introducing maore family friendly
practices which will aid recruitment, retention and motivation of staff.

2. Control of all expenditure through improving systems and procedures aiming to ensure the Academy has an
official authorised order for most expenditure.

3. Ongoing review of contracts for services and obtaining alternative quotes for all relevant supplies.

4. The Trustees ensure regularity and propriety in the use of Trust funds and achieve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. DIE frameworks are used where possible to achieve the best value for money when
considering building projects. We have a rebust lettings policy, the site is very well covered by CCTV, and
autorated gates on timers and the site development plan is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure projects

are prioritised where needed. A rolling site development pian is maintained and updated.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonabie level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of intemnal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the fikelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Piggott Church of England School for
the period ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements,
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Capacity to Handle Risk

The Beoard of Governors has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Governors is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy's significant risks that has been in place for the period from incorporation to 31 August 2023 and up fo
the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Governors.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particuiar, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Governors;

. regular reviews by the finance and general purposes commitiee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guideiines

. delegation of authority and segregation of dutfes;

. identification and management of risks.

The Governing Body has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and decided that Responsible
Officer visits will be conducted termly by Governors, auditors and other finance and data related professionals.

The Responsible Officer's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on
the academy trust's financial systems. in particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

s External governance review
» Review of IT disaster and contingency plans
¢ Health and safety

On an annual basis, the reviewer reports to the board of Trustees through the Finance Commitiee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Trustees’ financial responsibitities.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Executive Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the period ended 31 August 2022 the review has been informed by:

the work of the reviewer;

the work of the external auditor;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

*« & & o

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance Commitiee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place.
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Approved by order of the members of the Board of Governars and signed on their behaif by:

ity

R Thiele = DGray ' 7
Chair of the Governors Accounting Officer
Date: ] ?- 12

2.2
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As accounting officer of The Piggott Church of England School | have considered my responsibifity to notify the
academy board of Governors and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial
Handbook 2022 including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the academy board of Governors are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of all funds by the academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2022.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance discovered
to date have been notified to the board of Governors and ESFA. if any instances are identified after the date of
this statement, these will be notified to the board of Governors and ESFA:

The Piggott Church of England School incurred two instances of external fraud during the year. The monetary
amount lost due to these frauds was £500. The Trust has reviewed its processes and has implemented
changes to its controls for future transactions.

DGray
Accounting Officer
Date: 12 December 2023
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The Governors {who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Governors' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Governors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law, the Governors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Governors are required to:

.

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023,

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company wiil continue in business.

The Governors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsibie for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable sieps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended,

The Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

roved

R Thiele

order of the members of the Board of Governors and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Governors

Date:

11i11?
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Piggott Church of England School (the ‘academy’) for the year
ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of
cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2018 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the academy’s affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills
Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Governors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for

issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial
statements and our Auditor's report thereon. The Governors are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. i based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

) the information given in the Governors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Governors' Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Governors' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you i, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of Governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of governors’ responsibilities, the Governors (who are also the
directors of the academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal controt as the
Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL (CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the mare that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.

The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, amission or misrepresentation,

The specific procedures for this engagement that we designed and performed to detect material misstatements
in respect of irregularities, including fraud, were as follows:

» Enquiry of management and those charged with governance around actual and potential litigation and
claims;

= Enquiry of management and those charged with governance to identify any material instances of non-
compliance with laws and reguiations;

« Reviewing financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with applicable laws and regulations;

» Performing audit work to address the risk of irregularities due to management override of controls, including
testing of journal entries and other adjustments for appropriateness, evaluating the business rationale of
significant transactions outside the normal course of business and reviewing accounting estimates for
evidence of bias.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditor's report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL {CONTINUED)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might stafe to the academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respensibility to anyone other than the academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or far the opinions we have formed.

Darren O'Connor BSc{Hons) FCCA ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of
James Cowper Kreston Audit

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading Bridge House

George Street

Reading

Berkshire

RG1 8LS

Date: 14 December 2023
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 11 August 2023 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by The Piggott Church of England School during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions cenform fo the
autherities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Piggott Church of England School and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Piggott Church of Engiand
School and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Piggott Church of
England School and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Piggott Church of Engiand School's Accounting Officer and
the reporting accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Piggott Church of England School's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 23 June 2011 and the Academy Trust
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been appiied fo purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not confaorm to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

Our work on regularity included a review of the internal controls policies and procedures that have been
implemented and an assessment of their design and effectiveness to understand how the academy complied
with the framework of authorities. We also reviewed the reports commissioned by the governors to assess the
internal cantrols throughout the year.

Specific work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

» reviewing the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Governors and other evidence made available to
us,relevant to our consideration of regutarity;

» a review of the objectives and activities of the academy, with reference to the income streams and other
information available to us as auditors of the academy;

« testing of a sample of payroll payments to staff;

» testing of a sample of payments to suppliers and other third parties;

+ testing of a sample of grants received and other income streams;

We performed detailed testing based on ocur assessment of the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-

compliance. This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements where appropriate and included
analytical review and detailed substantive testing of transactions.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE
PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY
{CONTINUED)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which suggest in
ail material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31
August 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govern them.

The Piggott Church of England School incurred two instances of external fraud during the year, The Trust has
reviewed its processes, and have implemented changes to their controls for future transactions.

James Cowper Kreston Audit
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Reading Bridge House
George Street
Reading

Berkshire

RG18LS

Date:
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL

{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from:
Donations and capital

grants

Other trading activities

Investments

Charitable activities

Total income

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net income/

{expenditure)
Transfers between

funds

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised gains

Other recognised

gains:

Actuarial gains on
defined benefit pension

schemes

Net movement in

funds

Reconcitiation of

funds:

Total funds brought

forward

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried

forward

Note

18

24

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £ £

- 24,189 1,160,805 1,184,994 128,122

210,863 26,010 - 236,873 275,056

163 - - 163 141

- 11,486,627 - 11,486,527 9,790,743

211,026 11,536,726 1,160,805 412,908,557 10,195,062

25,028 11,669,545 612,621 12,307,194 11,017,712

25,028 11,669,545 612,621 12,307,194 11,017,712
185,998 (132,819) 548,184 601,363 (822,650)

{128,212) 36,019 92,193 - -

57,786 (96,800) 640,377 601,363 {822,650)

- 474,000 - 474,000 3,974,000
57,786 377,200 640,377 1,075,363 3,151,350
335,427 (1,233,000} 18,777,692 17,880,119 14,728,769
57,786 377,200 640,377 1,075,363 3,151,350
393,213 {855,800) 19,418,069 18,955,482 17,880,119

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 36 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07682284

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

2023
Note £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 18,276,046
18,276,046
Current assets
Stocks 14 7,244
Debtors 15 1,343,113
Cash at bank and in hand 853,099
2,303,456
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16 {704,754)
Net current assets 1,598,702
Total assets less current liabilities 19,874,748
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 17 {42,266}
Net assets excluding pension liability 19,832,482
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24 (877,000)
Total net assets 18,955,482
Funds of the academy
Restricted funds:
Fixed asset funds 18 19,418,069
Restricted income funds 18 21,200
Restricted funds excluding pension asset 18 19,439,269
Pension reserve 18 (877,000)
Total restricted funds 18 18,562,269
Unrestricted income funds 18 393,213
Total funds 18,955,482
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7,598
284,028
845,859

1,237,586

{705,280)

18,777,692

18,777,692

(1,233,000)

2022

18,635,565

18,635,565

532,306

19,167,871

(54,752)

19,113,119

(1,233,000)

17,880,119

17,544,692
335,427

17,880,119



THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL

{A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07682284

BALANCE SHEET {CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

The financial statements on pages 32 to 61 were approved and authorised for issue by the Governors and are
signed on their behalf, by:

----------------------

Chair Of Trustees
Date: b2 LI 73
The notes on pages 36 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee}

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 20
Cash flows from investing activities 21
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22,23

The notes on pages 36 to 61 form part of these financial statements
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2023 2022

£ £
(895,835) 635765
902,975  (352,895)
7,140 282,870
945,959 663,089
953,099 945,959




1.

THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

The principal activity of the Piggott Church of England School is to provide education for pupils aged
4 to 19. The Trust is an exempt charity and a company limited by guarantee {company number:
07682284). It is incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of the registered office is The
Piggoft Church of England School, Twyford Road, Wargrave, RG10 8DS.,

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities;
Statermnent of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102)
{Charities SORP (FRS 102)}, the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Piggott Church of England School meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Governors,

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpase.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.3

1.4

Income

All income is recognised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured refiably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
accaunt on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recegnition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.
meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and
its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the
asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in
the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where the receipt is probable and the amount can
be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the
extent the academy has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic
benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settiement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including
support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are
altocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support
costs which are not atiributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a
basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Assets costing £2,500 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directiy to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property - 2% straight line
Furniture and fixtures - 10% straight line
Computer equipment - 33% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Stocks
Catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shori-term highly liguid investments with a short

maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
account.
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Accounting policies {continued)

1.10 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a
result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be reguired in settlement,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the risks specific to the fability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within
interest payable and similar charges.

1.11 Financial instruments

The academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial fiabilities of the academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assels - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the academy's wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.
Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liablfities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to the academy's wholly
owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

1.12 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively {o charitable purposes.
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Accounting poficies (continued)

1.13 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS"} and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGFPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets o assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purpeses and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy in separate frustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and labilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least
triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and the costs of scheme infroductions, benefit changes, setilements
and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by mutltiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Local Government Pension Scheme

The prasent value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resuits from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual values, where
appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed annually and may vary

depending on a number of factors. Residual value assessments consider issues such as the remaining
life of the asset and projected disposal values,

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Donations - 2,989 26,091 29,080 74,622
Grants - 21,200 1,134,714 1,155,914 54,500

- 24,189 1,160,805 1,184,994 128,122

Total 2022 21,779 17,193 90,150 129,122
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Funding for the academy's charitable activities

Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £

Educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG) 9,957,080 9,957,080 8,869,832
Other DIE Group grants 97 889 97,889 100,919
Other grants 102,255 102,255 119,384
Pupil Premium 118,165 118,165 112,482

10,275,389 10,275,389 9,202,617
Other Government grants
Local authority 505,832 505,832 303,612

505,832 505,832 303,812
Other income from the academy's educational

operations 705,306 705,306 226,261
COVID-1¢ additional funding {DfE/ESFA)

Other DFE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - - 58,253

- - 58,253

11,486,527 11,488,527 9,790,743

11,486,527 11,486,527 9,790,743

Total 2022 9,790,743 9,790,743
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 122,926 - 122,926 122 883
Other income 57,525 26,010 83,535 124,698
School activities 28,921 - 238,921 15,981
Sales materials 1,491 - 1,491 11,494
210,863 25,010 236,873 275,056
Total 2022 255,461 19,595 275,058
Investment income
Unrestricted Total Totat
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
Investment income 163 163 141
Total 2022 141 141
Expenditure
Staff Costs Premises Other costs Total Total
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Educationat operations;
Direct costs 8,186,875 612,621 667,716 9,467,312 8,675,312
Allocated support costs 1,109,254 636,505 1,094,123 2,839,882 2,342,400
9,296,229 1,249,126 1,761,839 12,307,194 11,017,712
Total 2022 1,077,227 1,252,251 11,017,712

8,688,234
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educaticnal operations

Total 2022

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Cleaning

Rates, light and heat

Recruitment and support

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Insurance

Security and transport

IT costs

Printing, posting, marketing and stationery
School trips

Catering

Bank charges

Other support costs

Governance costs

Support Total Total

Direct costs costs funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

9,467,312 2,839,882 12,307,194 11,017,712
8,675,312 2,342,400 11,017,712

Total Total

funds funds

2023 2022

£ £

1,109,254 1,143,926

178,269 168,623

261,867 191,603

30,723 25,637

131,086 128,889

41,015 34,183

44,940 56,152

103,698 100,959

94,617 74,962

657,875 210,600

67,717 61,184

9,810 8,222

96,061 124,778

12,950 12,672
2,839,882
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Net incomel/{expenditure)

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

2022 2022
£ £
Depreciation of tanaible fixed assets 612,621 518,449
Fees paid to auditor for:
- audit 10,890 9,900
- other services 3,080 2,756
Staff
a, Staff costs
Staff costs during the year were as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
Wages and salaries 6,995,070 6,222,130
Social security costs 685,895 615,812
Pension costs 1,615,264 1,850,292
9,296,229 8,688,234
b. Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as foliows:
2023 2022
No, No.
Teachers 122 113
Administration and support 94 98
Management 12 9
228 220
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Staff {continued)
b. Staff numbers (continued)

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

2023 2022

No. No,

Teachers 107 107
Administration and support 58 62
Management 12 9
177 178

c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2023 2022

No. No.

in the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 6

in the band £70,001 - £80,000 4 1

In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 1
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 1 -

In the band £130,001 - £140,000 - 1
in the band £150,001 - £160,000 1 -

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy comprise the Governors and the senior management
team as listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the academy was £840,560 (2022 £626,406).

Page 46



1.

12.

THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Governors' remuneration and expenses

One or more Governors has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the academy. The principal and other staff Governors only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment. The
value of Goavernors’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
D Gray Remuneration 150,000 - 155,000 135,000 - 140,000
Pension contributions paid 35,000 - 40,000 30,000 - 35,000
J Humphrey Remuneration 45,000 ~ 50,000 45,000 - 50,000
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 15,000 10,000 - 15,000
M Smith (appointed 30 Remuneration 50,000 - 55,000
September 2022)
Pension contributions paid 10,000 - 15,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, expenses totalling £NIL were reimbursed or paid directly to one
Governor (2022: £33).

Governors' and Officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department of Education's risk protection arrangement {RPA), an
alternative fo insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Governors and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Governors
and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022
Additions

At 31 August 2023
Depreciation

At 1 September 2022
Charge for the year

At 31 August 2023

Net book value

At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022

THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Assets

Land and under Furniture Computer
buildings construction and fixtures equipment Total
£ £ £
22,524,843 - 3,335,636 783,453 26,643,832
- 28,543 82,126 142,433 253,102
22,524,843 28,543 3,417,662 925,886 26,896,934
4,460,876 - 2,955,371 582,020 8,008,267
410,931 - 94,334 107,356 612,621
4,871,807 - 3,049,705 699,376 8,620,888
17,653,036 28,543 367,957 226,510 18,276,046
18,063,867 - 380,165 191,433 18,635,565

included in brought forward fixed assets is recognition of the value of the land and buildings transferred
to the academy from its predecessor form as a Foundation School. The value recognised is in
accordance with a formal valuation undertaken by the ESFA that took place on 31 August 2012 and

totals £15,017,203.

Included within Land and Buildings is land of £1,529,487.

Stocks

2023

Catering Stack 7,244

2022

7.598
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Debtors
2023 2022
£ £
Due within one year
Trade debtors 38,488 38,539
Other debtors 31,674 50,209
Prepayments and accrued income 1,272,951 195,281

1,343,113 284,029

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2023 2022

£ £

Salix and CIF loans 12,486 12,488
Trade creditors 167,364 95,023
Other taxation and social security 161,789 154,341
Other creditors 4,792 2
Accruals and deferred income 358,323 443 428

704,754 705,280

2023 2022

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 243,308 43,044
Resources deferred during the year 310,034 243,308
Amounts released from previous periods (243,308) (43,044)
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 310,034 243,308

The income that has been deferred consist of grants for the Autumn term received before the year end
and income for trips taking place in the next academic year.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2023 2022
£ £

Salix and CIF loans 42,266 54,752
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The aggregate amount of liablities payable or repayable or in part more than five years after the
reporting date is:

2023 2022
£ £
Salix and CIF loans - 12,501

In 2016 the school received an interest free Salix energy efficiency loan and a CIF loan as part of its
funding for a project to replace boilers and roofs. The loan is repayable over 8 years, starting September
2017,

In 2620 the school received an interest free Salix loan as part of its funding for a project to replace the
roofs. The loan is repayable over 5 years starting March 2022,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant

Other DIE Group
Grants

Other grants
Pupil Premium
Pension reserve

Resftricted fixed
asset funds

in kind support -
buildings
Capital grants
and donation
3G Pitch sinking
fund

Fixed asset
donations/grants

Total
Restricted
funds

Total funds

17,880,119

12,908,557

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
335,427 211,026 {25,028) {128,212) - 383,213
- 10,793,640 (10,829,659) 36,019 - -
- 97,889 (97,889) - - -
. 527,032 (505,832) - - 21,200
- 118,165 {118,165) - - -
{1,233,000) - {118,000} - 474,000 {877,000)
(1,233,000} 11,536,726 (11,669,545) 36,019 474,000 {855,800)
18,761,345 - {612,621) 127,322 - 18,276,046
(123,922) 1,134,714 - (9,038) - 1,001,754
140,269 - - - - 140,269
- 26,091 - (26,091) - -
18,777,692 1,160,805 (612,621} 92,193 - 19,418,069
17,544,692 12,697,531 (12,282,166) 128,212 474,000 18,562,269
{12,307,194) - 474,000

18,955,482
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted General Funds - ESFA grants (including GAG), which must be used to meet the costs of
running The Piggott Church of England School. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State,
the acadmey trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could casry forward at 31
August 2023.

Restricted Other Funds - represents donations and fundraising income generated by the school, which is
for restricted use as stipulated by the donor along with {rip income and expenditure.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds - these funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital
purposes imposed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, Depariment for Education or other
funders where the assets acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

3G Pitch Sinking Fund - represents funds for the replacement of the 3G pitch. Currently the fund remains
unspent,

Unrestricted Funds - represents income generated by the school (such as lettings and hire of facilities)
and any other donations or investment income, which is not restricted for any specific purpose and can
be spent as determined by the Governing Body.

Transfers - The transfers reflect the cost of fixed assets incurred above that of capital grants received
from the ESFA. The transfers adjust the balance of the restricted fixed asset fund so that the balance
agrees back to the net book value of fixed assets, plus capital funds unspent at 31 August 2023,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant

Other DfE Group
Grants

Other grants
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
assef funds

In kind support -
buildings
Capital grants
and donation

3G Pitch sinking
fund

Total
Restricted
funds

Total funds

14,728,769 10,185,062

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
329,902 277,381 {19,358) {252,498) - 335,427
- 9,670,693 (9,759,067} 88,374 - -
- 100,919 (100,819) - - -
- 55,919 (565,919) - - -
{4,643,000) - {564,000) - 3,974,000 (1,233,000}
(4,643,000} 9,827,531 (10,479,905) 88,374 3,974,000  (1,233,000)
18,597,221 - - 164,124 - 18,761,345
304,377 90,150 (518,449) - - (123,922)
140,269 - - - - 140,269
19,041,867 90,150 (518,449) 164,124 - 18,777,692
14,398 867 9,917,681 (10,998,354) 252,498 3,974,000 17,544,692
{11,017,712) - 3,974,000 17,880,119
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Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted

Unrestricte Restricted fixed asset Total

d funds funds funds funds

2023 2023 2023 2023

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 18,276,046 18,276,046
Current assets 383,213 625,170 1,142,023 2,160,406
Creditors due within one year - (561,704) - (561,704)
Creditors due in more than one year - (42,266) - (42,266)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {877,000) - (877,000)
Total 393,213 (855,800) 19,418,089 18,955,482

Analysis of nef assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2022 2022 2022 2022

£ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - 18,635,565 18,635,565
Current assets 335,427 760,032 142,127 1,237,586
Creditors due within one year - {705,280) - (705,280)
Creditors due in more than one year - (54,752) - {54,752)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (1,233,000} - {1,233,000)

335,427

Total
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THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Reconciliation of net incomef{expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for the year (as per Statement of financial

activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DIE and other capital income
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decrease in stocks

(Increase)/decrease in debtors
{Decrease)/increase in creditors

Interest received

Net cash {used in}/provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE Group
Interest received

Net cash provided by/{used in) investing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents
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2023 2022
£ £
601,363  (822,650)
612,621 518,449
(1,155,914) (60,636)
118,000 564,000
354 3,119
(1,059,084) 137,031
(13,012) 296,593
(163) (141)
(895,835) 635765
2023 2022
£ £
(253,102)  (413,672)
1,155,914 60,636
163 141
902,975  (352,895)
2023 2022
£ £
953,099 945,059
953,099 945,959




23,

24.

THE PIGGOTT CHURCH OF ENGLAND SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1 At 31

September August

2022 Cash flows 2023

£ £ £

Cash at bank and in hand 945,959 {135,910) 810,049
Debt due within 1 year (12,486} - {12,486)
Debt due after 1 year {54,752} 12,486 {42,266)

878,721 {123,424) 755,297

Pension commitments

The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Barnett Waddingham. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £519 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £Nif) and are
included within creditors,

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme {TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a

percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Pension commitments (continued)
Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The 31 March 2016 TPS actuarial valuation results were
implemented from 1 September 2019, The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consuitation
were:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and noticnal assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The
revised employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be impiemented from 1 April
2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,257,129 (2022 - £1,107,062).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
{https:/imww.teacherspensions.co.uk/newsl/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total confribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £376,000 {2022
- £336,000), of which employer's contributions totailed £294,000 (2022 - £257,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 82,000 (2022 - £79,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 21.6
per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation refates to the employees of the academy, who were the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who
transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the
academy at the balance sheet date.

Partiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.
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Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023

Y%

Rate of increase in salaries 3.85
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/infiation 2.85
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.30
Inflation assumption (CPI) 3.00

2022
%

3.95
2.93
4.25
3.06

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Years Years

Retiring today
Maies 20.7 21.0
Females 23.6 23.8
Retiring in 20 years
Males 22.0 22.3
Females 25.0 25.3
Sensitivity analysis

2023 2022

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% 81 100
Discount rate -0.1% {83) {102)
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase (128) {141)
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 124 (137)
CPirate +0.1% (83) {100)
CPl rate -0.1% 81 98
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Pension commitments {continued)
Share of scheme assets

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

At 31
August At 31 August
2023 2022
£ £
Equities 2,351,000 1,996,000
Other bonds 467,000 493,000
Property 347,000 427,000
Cash and other liquid assets 27,000 54,000
Other 270,000 221,000
Total market value of assets 3,462,000 3,191,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £10,732 (2022 - £208,000).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
Current service cost (362,000) (744,000}
Net interest on defined liability asset (47,000) {74,000}
Administrative expenses {3,000} {3,000}
Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities {412,000) {821,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows;
2023 2022
£ £
Opening defined benefit obligation 4,424,000 7,404,000
Current service cost 362,000 744,000
interest cost 187,000 122,000
Employee contributions 82,000 79,000
Actuarial {gain)/ losses (565,000) (3,834,000}
Benefits paid (151,000) {91,000)
At 31 August 4,339,000 4,424,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Pension commitments {continued)

Changes in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Opening fair value of scheme assets 3,191,000 2,761,000
Interest income 140,000 48,000
Actuarial (losses)/gains {91,000) 140,000
Employer contributions 294,000 257,000
Employee coentributions 82,000 79,000
Assets distributed on settlements (151,000) {91,000)
Administration expenses {3,000) (3,000)
At 31 August 3,462,000 3,191,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022
£ £

Amounts payable:
Within 1 year 15,875 20,550
Between 1 and 5 year 10,292 25,035
26,167 45,585

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes fo contribute o the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within ong year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted

before hefshe ceases to be a member.
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Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating 1o connected and related party
transactions.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain governors'
remuneration and expenses aiready disclosed in note 11.

Agency arrangements

The Academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting
period ending 31 August 2023 the trust received £9,832 (2022: £10,822), had a brought forward figure of
£2,447 (2022: £1,898) and disbursed £7,972 (2022: £10,271) from the fund. Funds of £4,407 (2022
£2,447} relating to undistributed funds that may be repayable to ESFA is unspent have been carried
forward.
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